

MISSION STATEMENTS

Mission Statement:

The mission of the **Northern Medina County Chamber Alliance** is to strengthen our community by advocating for economic development through leadership, networking, promotion and education.

**Northern Medina
County Chamber
Alliance
BY-LAWS**

Effective: April 2016

THE NORTHERN MEDINA COUNTY CHAMBER ALLIANCE BY-LAWS

ARTICLE I General

Section 1: Name

This organization is known as the Northern Medina County Chamber Alliance (NMCCA), and will be referred to as the Chamber.

Section 2: Purpose

The purpose of this organization shall be:

- To promote economic growth and development
- To advocate for business enterprises
- To support activities of a civic, social, and cultural nature
- To facilitate an active dialogue among government, business, education and civic groups

ARTICLE II Membership

Section 1: Classification of Membership in the Chamber shall include:

Active
Honorary

Section 2: Definition of Active Membership

Active Membership is available to any reputable business, organization, or charitable entity having an interest in the purpose of the organization and paying the prescribed dues as determined by the Board.

Section 3: Definition of Honorary Membership

Honorary Membership is available to any individual or organization interested in the objectives of the Chamber. Honorary Members may not hold office nor may they vote. Honorary Membership may be conferred upon Members at such time and under such terms as the Board shall determine in the December Board meeting.

Section 4: Application and Approval

Application for membership will be in writing, on forms provided by the Chamber, and signed by the applicant. Election of members shall be by the Board of Directors at the next board meeting. Any approved applicant will become a member upon payment of the regularly scheduled investment or “dues” as provided in Article II, Section 6.

Section 5: Investments or “Dues”

Membership investments or “dues” are set by the Board of Directors and reviewed yearly.

Section 6: Membership in Good Standing

A member in good standing is a member:

- Whose dues are in current paid status;
- Who supports and adopts the purpose of the Chamber.

Section 7: Membership Termination

- Any member may resign from the Chamber upon written request to the Board of Directors.
- Any membership will be terminated for non-payment of dues after ninety days from the date due, unless otherwise extended for good cause.

- Any membership may be terminated by a two-thirds vote of the Board of Directors at a regularly scheduled meeting for conduct unbecoming of a member or prejudicial to the aims or repute of the Chamber, after notice and opportunity for any individual meeting with the Board of Directors is afforded the member complained against.

Section 9: Voting

In any proceeding in which voting by the membership is called for, each active membership will be entitled to one vote.

ARTICLE III Meetings

Section 1: Annual Meetings

An annual meeting of the Chamber shall be held each year, the time and place will be fixed by the Board of Directors and notice will be mailed or emailed to each member at least ten days before the meeting. The purpose of this meeting is to swear in the newly elected directors using the Oath of Office.

Section 2: General Membership Meetings

General meetings of the Chamber may be called by the Chairman of the Board at any time, or upon petition in writing of 25% of the members in good standing. At all membership meetings, the members in good standing present shall constitute a quorum.

Section 3: Special Meetings

Notice of special meetings of the members shall be mailed or emailed to each member at least five days prior to such meetings.

Section 4: Committee Meetings

Committee meetings may be called at any time by the Chairman of the Board, Chair-elect, or by the committee's Chair. At committee meetings, a majority of the number of committee members shall constitute a quorum except when a committee consists of more than nine members. In that case, five committee members shall constitute a quorum.

ARTICLE IV Board of Directors

Section 1: Composition of the Board

The Board of Directors shall consist of no more than 15 members of the organization who are in good standing, which includes the Chairman of the Board, Chair-elect, and Past Chair. Five (5) Directors shall be elected by the current Board of Directors each year for a term of three (3) years. A Director shall not serve more than two successive full terms; however, a member may be elected as a Director after one year following the conclusion of the second full term. The government and policy-making responsibilities of the Chamber shall be vested in the Board of Directors which shall control its property, be responsible for its finances, and direct its affairs.

Section 2: Selection and Election of Directors

- A. **Search Committee** – Prior to the August Board meeting, the Chairman of the Board shall appoint, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, a Search Committee of at least three (3) members of the Chamber. The Chair of this committee will be the Chair-elect.
1. The Chair of the Search Committee shall instruct the Chamber office to solicit Board of Director applications from the general membership to be completed and returned to the Chamber office prior to September 1.
 2. The Chamber office shall distribute all applications received from the general membership to the Search Committee no later than three (3) days after September 1 deadline.
 3. The Search Committee shall review each application received and, using the Chamber Matrix which best represent the entire region, shall come to a consensus on a five (5) member slate of Directors to fill expiring terms of current Directors.
 4. The Chair of the Search Committee will present the recommended five (5) member slate of Directors to the Chamber President no later than three (3) days prior to the October board meeting.
- B. **All candidates must:**
1. Complete a Board of Director application and return it to Chamber office by September 1.
 2. Be in good standing with the Chamber as defined by Article II, Section 7 of By-Laws
 3. Accept the responsibility of directorship
- C. **The Election Process:**
1. **Review of Slate** – During the October board meeting, the Chamber President/CEO will present to the current Board of Directors the Search Committee's recommended five (5) member slate of Directors.
 2. **Voting** – The current Board of Directors will vote on the five (5) member slate of Directors recommended by the Search Committee to serve three-year terms replacing the Directors whose terms are expiring.
 - a. A majority vote by current Board of Directors is required to approve the new slate of Directors.
 - b. If a majority vote is not reached, the Search Committee shall be required to present another five (5) member slate of Directors to current Board of

Directors for approval within 10 days of initial vote. This process will continue until a majority vote for the new five (5) member slate of Directors is reached.

3. **Publicity of Newly Elected Board Members** - Upon a majority vote by the current Board of Directors, the Chamber President/CEO shall notify the membership, by the most effective means available, the names of newly elected Directors. The term of the newly elected slate of Directors shall begin January 1 of subsequent calendar year.

Section 3: Non-Voting Directors

At any time, the Board of Directors may elect any past Board member to be a non-voting member of the Board of Directors. This person shall serve until December 31st of the year in which he or she was elected, and is eligible for reelection each year by the Board of Directors. Non-voting members of the Board shall not be subject to term limits and may be removed at any time with or without cause by majority vote of the members of the Board of Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present.

Section 4: Term of Office

All newly-elected Board members shall be seated at the regular November and/or December Board meetings and shall be participating members starting January 1. Retiring directors shall continue to serve until the end of the year of their term.

Section 5: Removal from Board of Directors

Removal shall occur when sufficient cause exists for such action and voted by 2/3 board approval for:

- Failure to attend three (3) regularly scheduled meetings of Board of Directors per year, unless absenteeism is due to justified causes. Prior to removal of any excess absenteeism, a fair and impartial hearing will be conducted by the board.
- Failure to adhere to the Board responsibilities and expectations explained in Board of Directors Roles and Responsibilities form which is signed each year by each Director.

Section 6: Vacancies

Vacancies on the Board of Directors, or among the offices, shall be filled by the Chairman of the Board with approval by the Board of Directors by a majority vote.

Section 7: Special Board Meetings

Special Board meetings may be called by the Chairman of the Board or by written request of any four members of the Board. Notice, including the purpose of the meeting, shall be given to each Director at least one day prior to meeting.

Section 8: Quorums

At a Board meeting a majority of Directors then in office shall constitute a quorum.

Section 9: Notices, Agenda, Minutes

Written notice of all regularly scheduled Board meetings must be given at least seven days in advance unless otherwise stated. An advance agenda and minutes from prior meetings must be prepared for all meetings. A detailed outline of both shall be a part of this organization's procedures manual. Virtual board meeting will be allowed when needed.

Section 10: Management

The Board of Directors shall employ a President/CEO and shall fix the salary and other considerations of employment.

Section 11: Voting

Each director has one (1) vote. Proxy voting is not authorized.

Section 12: Indemnification

The Board of Directors of the Northern Medina County Chamber Alliance hereby resolves and provides for indemnification by the Chamber of any and all current or former officers, directors and employees against expenses actually and necessarily incurred by them in connection with the defense of any action, suit, or proceeding in which they or any of them are made parties, or a party, by reason of having been officers, directors or employees of the Chamber, except in relation to matters as to which such individuals shall be adjudged in such action, suit or proceeding to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of duty and to such matters as shall be settled by agreement predicated on the existence of such liability for negligence or misconduct.

ARTICLE V Officers

Section 1: Determination of Officers

The Board of Directors, both new and retiring, at its regular December meeting shall organize for the coming year. At this meeting, the President/CEO and the Chairman of the Board shall present a slate of officers to the board including the incoming Chair, Chair-Elect and Treasurer. All officers shall take office on the first day of the new fiscal year.

- A. The Chair-Elect will, after successful completion of prescribed duties, become Chairman of the Board and will remain on the Board of Directors throughout each office held, including Chair-elect, Chairman of the Board, and Past Chair, even if his/her term would otherwise end.
- B. The Board of Directors will also elect a Treasurer for the term of one (1) year. The Treasurer will have an option to serve additional years per board request and approval.
- C. The Chairman of the Board will have an option to serve for an additional year per board request and approval.

Section 2: Duties of Officers

The Board of Directors shall identify specific duties for each office of the Chamber. Such duties shall be a part of the Chamber procedures manual, which will be reviewed annually and amended as necessary.

If the Chair is unable to fulfill duties the Chair-elect will be appointed by the Board of Directors.

Section 3: Executive Committee

The Executive Committee shall act for and on behalf of the Board of Directors when the Board is not in session and a Quorum cannot be obtained. The Executive Committee however, shall be accountable to the Board for its actions. It shall be composed of the Chairman of the Board, Chair-elect, Past Chair and Treasurer. The Chairman of the Board shall serve as chair of the Executive Committee.

ARTICLE VI Committees

Section 1: Appointment and Authority

The Chairman of the Board shall appoint all committees and committee chairs.

It shall be the function of committees to make investigations, conduct studies and hearings, make recommendations to the Board of Directors, and to carry on such activities as may be delegated to them by the Board.

Chairman of the Board shall authorize and define the duties and powers of all committees

Section 2: Limitation of Authority

No committee shall take or make public any formal action, or make public any resolution, or in any way commit the Chamber on a question of policy without first receiving approval of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VII Finances

Section 1: Funds

All revenue received by the Chamber shall be deposited into financial institutions as approved and directed by the Board.

Section 2: Disbursements

Pursuant to the approved budget, the President/CEO is authorized to make disbursements provided for in the budget without additional approval of the Board of Directors. The Treasurer will audit disbursements on a regular and ongoing basis and report to the Board of Directors.

Section 3: Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the Chamber shall be January 1st to December 31st of each year.

Section 4: Budget

In December, the Executive Committee, consisting of the Chairman of the Board, Chair-elect, Past Chair and Treasurer shall recommend the budget for the coming year and submit it to the Board of Directors for approval.

Section 5: Annual Financial Review

The accounts and finances of the Chamber of Commerce shall be reviewed annually by an accountant as of the close of business on December 31. The review shall at all times be available to members of the organization within the offices of the Chamber. The Board of Directors may retain a CPA to perform a full audit if deemed necessary.

ARTICLE VIII Dissolution

Section 1: General

The Chamber of Commerce may be dissolved in the event the membership no longer wishes to pursue the goals of its mission statement.

Section 2: Procedure

- A member in good standing presents a written petition signed by 2/3 of active members in good standing to dissolve the Chamber to the Board at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.
- A member in good standing presents to the Board a written petition to dissolve the Chamber which has been signed by 2/3 of active members in good standing.
- To dissolve the Chamber, at least a 90% approval from active members is required.
- On dissolution of the Chamber, any assets remaining shall be distributed to one or more regularly organized and qualified charitable, educational, scientific or philanthropic organizations to be selected by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IX Parliamentary Procedures

Section 1: Parliamentary Authority

The current edition of Roberts Rules of Order shall be the final source of authority in all questions of parliamentary procedures when such rules are not inconsistent with the Charter or By-Laws of the Chamber.

**ARTICLE X
Amendments**

Section 1: Revisions

The By-Laws may be amended by a two-thirds vote of the Board of Directors, or by a majority of the members at any meeting called for such purpose, provided that notice has been given for the meeting not less than 10 days prior to schedule meeting.

The By-Laws were approved on _____. Members of the Board of the Northern Medina County Chamber Alliance listed below approved the by-laws.

Directors:

Terri Hradek
Mark Priebe
Greg Stafford
Deborah Wasytko
Sandra Jenkins
Christine Stump
Ed Siurek
Lisa Keltz

Dave LeHotan
Linda Garrett
Cindy Kintop
Collin Vickers
Dave Smallwood
Denise Pozderac
MaryAnn Bauer

Officers:

Chairman of the Board: Terri Hradek
Chair-Elect: Mark Priebe
Treasurer: Christine Stump
Past-Chair Brunswick: Greg Stafford
Past-Chair Valley City: Cindy Kintop